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PERMANENT MISSION SANTA CLARA PEAD COLLECTION

The permanent Mission Santa Clara bead typology
collection is housed in the Mission/Early California
collection of the de Saiscset Museum at the University

of Santa Clara, Santa Clara. The de Saisset Museum

was founded at the University of Santa Clara in 1355.
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“ PHE FOUNDING AND BRIEF HISTCRY OF lISSION S:XNTA C

The original Mission Santa Clara was to have been situated
near what is now the town of Castaic in Los Angeles County.
But Spain, eyeing Russian activity in North aAmerica, ordered
that priority be given to two new missions and a fort on San
Francisco Ray.

Thus Mission San Francisco was founded Octoker 9, 1776.
On January 12, 1777, Mission Santa Clara was established Ly
Father Tomas de la Pena, using the name and supplies that had
been destined for Castaic.

The site, crossed frequently by Spanish explorers since
the days of Portola's expedition in 1769, was on a fertile
plain - populated with many Indian villages - beside the Guad-
alupe River at the southern end of the bay.

The founding party heading for Mission Santa Clara left
the Presidio of San Francisco on January 6, 1777 with six
soldiers, their wives and children. Lt. Moraga, who was in
command, and Father Tomas de la Pena reached Mission Dolores
in modern San Francisco that night., They set out early the
next morning and laboriously made their way down the Peninsula
through swampland and areas which they named "Las Pulgas" for
the painful swarms of fleas that attacked them.

They came, at length, to the bank of the Rio Guadalupe
where a good surface stream which we call Mission Creek ran
from the present Santa Clara area due north into the Rio
Guadalupe. The area was surrounded by laurel trees and was
called by the Indians "Socoistaca" or "Place of the Laurels."

Here on the evening of January 12, 1777, a large wooden
cross was erected and a bower made of saplings and branches,
in preparation for the first divine worship to be conducted in

this valley the next morning.



Work was bcgun irmmzdiately on erection of the Missinn
compound hbuildings. First built was a church of upright saplings,
chinked with adobe and rxoofed with thatch of brush. The next
building was a residcnce for the padres and their lay helpers,
and anocther was bhuilt for the sonldiers and their families -
both were -uilt of upricht saplings and thatch. Storehouses
were also built and separate corrals for cattle, shcep and
hoxsess.

Two weeks later, Padre Jose Murguia with a party of helpers,
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arrived at lMission Santa Clara after a four day jcurney, driv-
ing the bank of Mission cattle - originally twelve in aunber,
but by official delays increased to eighteen. There were also
other animals.

The Mission fathers made an immediate policy that none of
the stock was to be slaughtered for food until the herds of
cattle and sheep had increased to the point that no ordinary
catastrophe could wipe them out.

These herds were to increase over the years to a max-
imum number of 15,500 sheep and 14,500 cattle in 1827. As
‘early as 1800, there were over twelve hundred Indian men,
women and children aggregated to the Mission and their number
was over 1,450 in the year 1827.

To provide food, clothing and training for so large a
group meant much planning and effort. Artisans were brought
from Mexico before 1794 to train the Indian men in iron forging,
shoe making, saddlery, soap making and other domestic arts.

In the Mission's first year, fields between the present
Southern Pacific Railroad track and the Rio Guadalupe were
cleared and planted with two kinds of wheat, with maize,
horsebeans, frijole beans and other lentils. These were
irrigated with water channeled from El Pozo, a deep spring

later known in funerican cays as Cook's Fond.



Father Palou noted that within a rezsoncahle distince of
the newly founded Santa Clara Hission, there were some forty-
five Indian villages which the Spanish called "rancherias."
rhey were organized into groups of three or four villagces
which clung tenaciously to their land and fishing rights.
There were freguent hostilities with the neighboring gioups of

villages if trcspassing of any Xind occcurred.

)

Father Palou noted that the Indian's own name for tii~m-
selves was the "Tares" in the Spanish pronunciation, which
meant "The Real People.”

At the end of the first year, the padres had built a dam
and corresponding ditches to irrigate the fields. They planted
and harvested corn and beans, and in the last month of the
second year, wheat was sown.

At this time, thirteen converts were living at the mission.
Of the thirteen, seven were adults. Later, other adults came
under instruction and were prepared for baptism.

On November 7, 1777, Lt. Luis Joaquin Moraga, who had
escorted the migsionaries and soldiers to Santa Clara, returned
from San Francisco with nine soldiers and five colonists and
their families to .found the pueblo of San Jose, the first town
in California.

A disastrous flood demolished the mission on January 23,
1779. Father Pena and the neophytes moved to higher ground
while Father Murguia remained in the mud and rain to guard
the supplies. When the weather improved, a second temporary
mission was built. The second Mission Santa Clara, which was
built of upright logs, was built in 1779. The mission was
moved in 1784 because of further floods.

"In 1781, Father Junipero Serra, assisted by Father Crespi
Pena and Father Joseph Murguia, laid the cornzsrsitone of the
church at the third mission site,"
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In May, 1784, this adobe church, which was built by

Yvrguia, was blessed and dedicated by Father Junipero Serra.



Father lMurguia's church, which vas located at Franklin

nd Cannbell Stre=sts where a mounted cross now marks the site,

I

‘as the "largest and most pretentious church erected up to tha
tiﬁé," according to records left by Father Serra.

The church was used until 1818 when it was so badly dam-
aged by 2n earthquake, it was rend:rzd inserviceable and was
dismantled.

The cornerstone, which was always laid on the "gosp2l"
side or east end of a church, was uncovered in 1911 while
workmen were laying a gas main. Twenty-two vears later,

Father Spearman uncovered the only part of the third missiun
left: the foundation and two tiers of adobe and large creck
stones from the inside walls of the easterly wing of the
Indian workshops.

The fourth Mission Santa Clara was a temporary adobe church
built in 1818-1819 on a site facing today's Jesuit residence
and between the University's Kenna Hall and Delia Walsh Admin-
istration Building.

The building was used as a church until 1825 when it be-
came the dormitory for the Indian boys who helped in the mission
religious services and stufdied in the Santa Clara Mission
School under "lay" teachers. The "lay" teachers were pre-
dessors to the Jesuit fathers who took over in 1851 to bring
higher education to the mission school.

Construction of the quadrangle, which became the living
guarters for the padres and Indians, and building of the fifth
ilission Santa Clara church began in 1822 with the erection of
two rows of adobe buildings, each 85 "varas" or 225 feet in
length,

The mission continued to flourish, numbering 1,462 Indien
zarishioners in 1827, and owning 14,500 head of cattle and 15,500
~Sheep in 1828,



The fifth and final nission was cowpleted and dedicated
in 1225. Included in the mission compound viere the church,
padres' residence and the docaitory room for the young Indian
girls, the girls' workshop where they spun wool, and the vine-
yard in the southwestern area.

The L-shaped wing nearest the present--day rose garden

an wives and children
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of General John C. Fremont's volunteers during the winter of
1846-47.

During the first three decades of the nineteenth centuxy,
the old mission enjoyed its most fruitful ye=ars under the
acgis of the padres. A combination of factors terminated the
decades of prosperity at Santa Clara and the other California
liissions. The Mexican War of Independence brought turmoil
from 1810 to 1821 with the resultant decrease of Franciscan

oraonnel and donations in aid from benefactors. The new

'C

Mexican government took possession of the old Jesuit Pious
Fund of the Californias that had been the main source of
support for the Mission. Most of the Indians' lands, cattle
and sheep became the object of spoliation by unscrupulous
civil administrators.

In 1827 and again in 1829 governmental descrees ordered
exile for all Spaniards who refused allegiance to the new
regime. Since most of the Mission Padres were from Spain,
mcny chose banishment. Some, however, remained until, in
1833, lMexican Franciscan replacements arrived from the missionary
college of Zacatecas. Among them was Fry Francisco Garcia
Dicgo y Moreno who was to become the first bishop of the
Californias,

The Mission period grew to a close toward 1835 when the
political rulers, who had long looked ccve<tcusly con the well-

Xzpt mission lands znd herds of cattle and sheep, at length



confiscated all the temworalities and left the mission padres
only the church building and a few rooms- beside it o slecp in.

Even their supplies of food were =so diminishcd that at
Mission La Soledad, Father Sarria dropped dead of malnutrition
cne Sunday at the mission altar.

At Senta Clara, secularization was carried out on Tec-
emher 27, 1837. From then on, the Indians were.rapidly scat-
tered and the herds of cattle and sheep were dispersed to
various new owners,

The last Santa Clara Mission cattle, the milch cows
which numbered seventeen.in the mission corral (whose arca is
now occupied by the Santa Clara City Library), were confiscated
by General Jose Castro. General Castro had quartered his
soldiers in the mission and on departing, took even the blankets
of the mission residences with him. The slaughter of the cows
deprived the American women and children who were living at
the mission of their last means of food. Padre Jose Real,'the
last Franciscan, was also hard put for a living.

By now, American immigrants were settling around the
mission buildings, and Father Real asked William Campbell to
survey the area of the present city of Santa Clara. Town lots
were sold for $13 each.

It was not long until the incoming Americans took over the
Valley politically, agriculturally and economically. With the
forming of Santa Clara County, the town of Santa Clara was
one of the five officially designated townships and local
officials were elected by the townspeople,

Barricaded inside Mission Santa Clara de Assis, 175
American men, women and children prepared for battle. The
big wooden gates in the wall were jzmmed shut with trunks
of trees and as night fell, every man who could handle a we. ccn

was posted at a strategic spot. In the crumbling belfry of the



old church, a lookout peered northward into the darkness, while

in the adjacent field of iwstard, thirty-two ariicd men huddled
in wait for the advancing horsemen of Col. Jose Sanchez.
It was the winter of 1846; the war with cxico was nearing

its climax. Col. John C. Fremont and his voluntcer batallion

had marched off for Los Angeles, leaving their families at
on Jcse wWas

%,

Mission Santa Clara. It was on this mission that
scending, bent on revenge for the pillage of his ranch by the
"Americanos."

After a tense and fearful night, the battle, when it came,
was almost an anticlimax. There was much skirmishing, but the
only fatality was an American killed when his field gun blew up.
The British consul arranged a truce.

In the early 1840's a new people and new way of life came
to Alta California. Most of the immigrants were Anglo-Americans,
attracted by the rich lands of the Santa Clara Valley. In 1848,
the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo ceded California to the United
States. Statehood was granted in 1850 by which time scme 8,500
persons were baptized at Mission Santa Clara.

In 1839, rain water sliding off the slanted roof of the
church cut into the adobe church tower and washed away the top
portion of the tower and the catwalk, which was used as a fire
and cattle watch. The tower was rebuilt in wood.

The thick adobe sidewalls of the fifth mission church were
taken out in 1885 and replaced with wooden walls, thus enlarging
the church.

Monday morning, October 25, 1926, a "great fire" destroyed
the padres' quarters and damaged the mission church. The fire
was believed to have been started by bat dung in the north
tcwer of the mission church, damaging the insulation. Wires
crossed by the wind ignited the tower, and within twenty minutcs

i church was a mass aof flam=s.



The present structure, an enlarged replica of the original

was ccmpleted in 1928 and consecrated by Rreihbishop Jcohn J.
Mitty of San Francisco, October 9, 1936. " It is roofed with the
original mission tiles and contains many statues and paintings
brought by the eatly Peadres from old Hs®ico, Likewis

of the interior ~fecoration of t

sanctuary ceiling, is a careful reproduction of that of the

original Mission
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FURL SCTERTTIE TE 'ARCUAEOIOGICHL FROELIH . AT HISSION | SENTA G- s A

There are mnany intcresti :g archacnlcyical probloms
aseociated with the Mission Santa Clara head collection.
The beads that make up the collaction were not part of an

archaeological excavation; therefore, there is no date or

01]

e
docum=zntation associated with the bhead

n

w2zx22n, a Tortien of the heads

Accoréing to Fether
was collected in the spring of 1911. This apparently wvas
during the same trenching that led to c
cornersione of the third church. "On Thursday, June 8, 1911,
the Town Poard was laying a new gas main to ci
down Campbell Avenue to the Pratt-Low Canning Company's worXs,
A decep trench was being dug by John Andrado and John Vierra,
working under the direction of J. Worthington, Superintendent
of the Gas Works. The direction of the ditch brought them to
the corner of the o0ld mission-building foundation walls and the
cornerstone was thus discovered." (Speérman 1263:88)

A second major collection was done after the October 25,
1926 fire of the church and student memorial chapel. Many of

the burnt and fused bcads came from this second collection.

No one is sure if these heated beads had previously been collected

and were damaged by the fire or if they were excavated during
1926 and 1927 when the present steel-framed enlarged replica
of the fifth Franciscan liission Santa Clara was built.

A possible source of the second collection was burials
that were discovered in 1924 during the building of Kenna Hall
business building. According to Father Spearman, Father Magin
Catala's one room adobe which attached to the south church
wall was used as a very small museum until the 1926 fire and
immay have housed beads from the XKenna burials. =nother possible
source of the beads was the burials that were discovered in

1927 when the new church fcurncdation was being laid. According
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i ler Speariwan, these upright burials ware moved to the
'q' side of the present church and were re--bhuried around
J_I nter cross of the rose garden. Father Spearaan also
= 1792 diaries and later personal accounts of an early
RIS S 4 and living site at and to the north of Franklin and
g 11, and an (1800--1818) Indian cemctary under Franklin
51 e

interestingly, only the third mission site has hzad a

o8 archacology designation, SCI-30 &end the Society of
P_1|=‘fnia Archaeology clearing house 5 at Santa Cruz has little
; .n the site.
- wvhen this researcher received the beads from the de Saisset
o .1, they were strung on five strands with the remainder in
TS L pile. I showed the strands of beads to Father Speaiman.
. ‘1 not recall which bead type came from which location, nor
éh‘lj recall that they were previously strung. Evidently, they
) strung arbitrarily to enhance the bead display. However,
ilw ling to Bennyhoff's ccomplex types, many of the bcads
: strung in entirely the wrong sequence. Caution should be
:\ ised in restringing the beads. It may be a reflection of
:, resent Museum curator's aesthetic values rather than the
d

ive value the Indians associated with the beads.




BEAD - A MoDIUM OF PRESTICE ALID EXCHILICGE

The collection of Lo.:ds from liission Santa Clara, althcugh
aumbering only 1,020 to date, has becn classified into thirty-
eicht distinct Mission Santa Clara tyges. Since these beads
comprise hasically a piece-meal collection, the research
potential for bead collection and analysis at the various
Mission Santa Clara sites is enormous.

The glass beads rzpresent the interaction of tuo corplex
culicures, the local Indian of the South EBay Area and the
colonizing Spanish from the 0ld World.

In February, 1697, two Spanish Jesuits asked for and
received permission of the King of Spain to "attempt the spir-
itual conquest of the Californians." The country was to be
taken in the name of the King and was not to be underwritten
by the King. Therefore, the Jesuits established and maintained
the "Pious Fund of the Californias" which was used to build
thirteen missions in lower California until 1768 when all
Jesuits were banished from all Spanish possessicns by the King.
The Viceroy of Mexico was ordered to pass the work of the
Jesuit missionaries over to the Franciscans. In 1769, the
mission building in Upper California started. Since the mission
had few Spanish laborers, the Indians were "gathered in when
necessary..." (Country Club of Washington Township:48)

During this time up to 1836 with the withdrawal of the
Pious Fund and the appointment of the parish priests and ad-
ministrators, the glass trade bead, apparently brought primar-
ily from Venice, Italy by the Spanish in addition to other
materials, was used as a medium of exchange for Indian friend-
ship.

Beads and ornaments were veryv much a part of most Native
Californian cultures prior to the "merciful uplift from de-
gradation by their Franciscan teachers." (ldcCarthy:62)

Z2z24ds were a basic economic elzmarnt as well as a status marker

of the political system.
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The Spanish were quick to realize this in. lower California
and introduced glass trade bcads as a nediuvin of barter and as
a means of sccuring native friendship. They followed this
practice with. the introduction of the trade beads in the Bay
Area.

Eennyhoff states that beads were "...distributed freely
by early Eurcpcan intruders to promote friendship and given
more cparingly in return for furs and ocher trade items; 10
the Indians these were more valuable than any other wealth iicm.”
(Bennyhoff 1961:67)

The first record of trade beads given to Bay Area Indians
was in December, 1770, when Pedro Fages succeeded military co.ciznd
of Alta California from retiring Don Gaspar Potola and was trying
to find a land route to Point Reyes.

"We saw close to the lagoon many pleasant and affable heathen,
to whom we presented some strings of glass becads." (McCarthy:21)
Later, explorers as Colonel Juan Bautista de Anza, 1776,
recorded giving glass trade beads to the Bay Area Indians possibly
in the area of Mission San Jose. With the establishment of the

Santa Clara Mission, the infusion of glass trade beads was
accelerated at a tremendous rate which continued until 1836,

and then dwindled .to a minimal level to the present time.
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The scope of this wnreliminary analysis is limitcd by
{wo primary factors. The first is that the beads that form
the permanent lMission collection are basically from piece-
:acal collections taken at !Mission Santa Clara sites during
1611 and 1927. Since no prcvenience was maintained with the
b
1y

ds, the scope of analysis was limited to serics of
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a
es and the development of a head tirology.
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second limiting factor is that there is no staniar

v
)
®

T
iypology for California shell and glass trade beads. l!eighen's
glass trade bead collection and shepe typology was used zas
a basis for the working typology that evolved with Mission

San Jose and Mission Santa Clara bead classification. However,

~the Meighan typological collection and his 1953 paper on the

"Occurrence and Distribution of Glass Trade Beads in California"
are now both incomplete and outdated. The Ventura Mission data
included sixty-plus beads not included in the MHeighan collection,
and Mission Santa Clara types include eight tvpes not in the-
Meighan collection.

Dr. J. Bennyhoff at Sonoma State has been maintaining the
Meighan collection at Berkeley (at present in the P study
locker in the basement of the Hearst Women's Gymnasium), but
a complete revision and updating of both the type collection
and a functional key to the types must be undertaken if the
collection and its typology is to maintain any value in this
growing archaeological specialization.

This author would like to suggest that for the benefit of
the science of bead typology, the petty politics of separate
typological collections at various institutions be sacrificed
and that a standard California typological collection be
established at U.C.L.A. and Berkeley with all new types
immediately feeding into these type collections and their
continually revised keys.

When attempting to type the beads from the written Meighan

description only, it is not unusual to have a fifty percent



error in type awvcuracy. zTueref n San 'Jose hezd
tyvpology was ci an collecticn
type beads; even at that, se ral typ were queStionable and
zre so identified with a o

type number.

-~

The major emphasis of this preliminary analysis

dzveloping a s

was 1in

'stem of Mission Santa Clara bead type idenii-

fication cards for future identification and recordaticn,
systematic bead incas

irement analysis, and a systematic

u TP~
olcgy for the Missicn Santa Clara beads.
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TOCETION OR 2T LIgSs iyl S2nWE CLARA CIHURCH S1ITES

Theilicsion Santa Clara tcad conllection is thought to have
come primarily from the Mission church site Nuwbers Three
end Five, and possibly Mission ‘chiurch site Four.

L

Based on the research of Father James Colligan, S.J.

znd Father “rthur D. Spearmen, S.J., five Franciscan Church
cites have been located for Mission Santa Clara de Mssis.,
SITE I: rounde

a
d@ January 12, 1777. Temporary site was of
saplings, upright, palisade style on the west
bank of HMission Creek. "Today it is on the
Mortheast side of Kifer Road at the intersection
of De La Cruz Boulevard within the area of the
Southwest ramp of the Bayshore Freeway."

(Speaxrman:1263:92)

SITE 2: November 11, 1779, also a temporary site of
saplings, is marked by a cross at the Northeast
corner of Martin Avenue at De La Cruz Boulevard.
(Spearman 1963:92)

SITE 3: dedicated May 16, 1784 (SCI-30). This was the
first oermanent adobe church. This site was
rediscovered June 8, 1911 with the uncovering
of the Murguia church cornerstone. A cCross
commemorates the site at the corner of Campbell

and Franklin Avenues.

SITE 4

1818. Is on the University of Santa Clara grounds
between Kenna Hall and the Administration Building -
described as Fast of the present Alviso Street,
opposite the South half of the Jesuit Fathers'
residence (Spearman 1963:53). Except for the

publication center, this area is open and planted




SiTE 5: The present site of the Church on the HMission

grounds was dedicated Zugust 11, 1825

'—«l
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NREANIZITION OF THE MTSSIOW SEI'A CLARA BiEAD WYPE CARD

Atypical becads have becn Durposefully selccted to show

the greatcst variability in he:z and size

=h

or that particuvlar

type bead. Tdecally, the type card shcws the maximum range

rof variability for that type b2ad.

The Santa Clara bead type cards have been modified to

facilitate placing the Missicn Santa Clara bead types an rvhlie
display in the de Saisset Art Gallery and iuseum's ission
collection. To provide for an aesthetically pleasing display,

e
the data for cecach bead card may be covered by the following
cards allowing only the beads and the Santa Clara be
clature to be seen.

On the left side of each card is listed the Meighan, Malibu,
Ventura and San Jose nomenclature for the same bhecad typevso éhat
it is cross referenced right on the type card.

In the upper center is the Meighan shape name, the specific
color, and the degree of opagueness.

For those types that have a great variebility, the exact
measurements in mm is stated for the smallest and largest
example of that type, if possible the beads are scwn on the
card. The standard notation usually to the nearest half
millimeter is for bead diameter followed by bead length and
finally by bead perforation; example for Clb, range: 3.5/2.0/1.0-
4.0/4.0/2.0. For those tyvpes that are of little variability,
the measurements of the card bead are placed just under the
shape, color and opague designation in about the center of
the card.

The total number of type samples collected is noted as
total # printed just under the beads.

The Mission Santa Clara designation is printed in the upper

left corner for easy identification while thumbing through

the type cards.

.-
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=
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gna c
all %rown sites for that bead type are listed on the lower left

1=

For those types that have been typed in e




This information will e ucsed in

19

wcoecssary, csatinued on to the bhack of th2 card,
future reseswch to estzblish
crade and trade rcutes, and poscsibly cultural systems.

has also becen acded to all Meighan type cards

S
ffort to update the lMeicghan type collection for all
e
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AD TECHNOLOGY

The first catscory is Cane Bead notated with a capital® £,

Cane beads acccount for approximately 94.4% of the glass beads

analyzed at Mis 51on Santa Clara. A lump of molten glass is

tzken out of the furnace with an iron bar and a pocket of air

is formed by either hlcwing into the lump with a tube or by

rolding the luzim of glass. “when a sacond iron

e LS aiscevroed
he lompl i

a

to the lump, and a worker will run “"drawing" ihe 1 nio
ong slender glass tube. This long tube is then broken into
&

one meter lengiths and packed into bundles. The dizret

ﬂ)

5

O

f
ass tvhes will depend entirely on the extent to ~h

the
bubble has Lzen elongated (drawn); it may vary from 1.5 mm to
over 25mm. These tubes are then snapped or chopped into beads
of desired length (thickness). The beads can be sold as is,
or they may be tumbled in a heated drum with ground charcoal
and fine sand. Tumbling reduces the snapped tubes to oval or
rounded bzads. Different colors may be added to the molten
lump before it is drawn, thus creating a wide variety of color
types.

The second category is Wirewound Bead notated with a

capital "W". Wirewound beads account for 2.6% of the glass beads
analyzed at Mission Santa Clara. The lump of hot glass is
drawn as above, but without putting an air bubble in it. This
results in a glass rod. Workers then melt one end of a glass

rod with a glass-blcwing lamp and fold or wrap it arocund a copper
or iron wire. WWhen the glass ring is closed around the wire,

the rest of the rod is cut off, and the wire with the glass

ring is turned and heated until the ring is round or oval.

¥hen 3~5 rings have been turned, the wire is set aside to cool.
In cooling, the metal contracts and the beads can be slid off
(van der Sleen, 1973:23; Hammesfahr & Strong, 1968:€4). Beads

in this categorv can be distinguished from the Cane categoxy

by observing swirling patterns in the glass that are gencrally



obliguely perpendicnlar {lieliacal) to the

T T LErZOTration: Often
oty 1_ e Fo AT ‘)S’Z A 1917 (3 : At ~TAC ~ N < s im L sy 9 ®
this must be observed uirder a nicroscope. Near the perforiiion
on either side there may ke a small lump which was where the

d
glass rod first touched the wire or where the rod was cut

after the bead was large enough.

The third category is Pressed Read notated with a capital "p".
crrcssed beads account for approzimstely 2.3% of the gless b:a&sm
znalyzed at Mission Santa.Clara. Prassz=d beads can e sub-
iividad on the basis of glass being presszd or gorcelain Lei g

ied. Glass beads of all forms (iz: cane, wirewound, blcw
eic.) while still hot can be pressad with metal objecits or by
sing small moulds into a variety of shapes including hexacgonzal
or square beads, bicones or barrels with flattened ends, cylinders,
prisms, melon forms etc. (van der Sleen, 1973:23,26).
The other variety of pressed bead uses nore clay or better
felspar which results in a porcelain rather than glass. The
beads are opaque with a glossy luster that distinguishes them
from glass beads. 1In addition, there is an equatorial band,
sometimes barely visible to the naked eye resulting from the
mould (van der Sleen, 1973:114).

The fourth category is Faceted Bead notated with a capital "rF",

Faceted beads account for approximately 0.8% of the analyzed
glass beads at Mission Santa Clara. Faceted beads can be sub-
divided on the basis of hand-held ground beads or machine
"automatic" faceted beads. Indirect evidence from the Industrial
Revolution in America and Britain indicates a date of around
1850 as the period when hand cutting of glass was being replaced
by milling machines and grinding machines (Singer, et al. 1958
vol. 4:376, vol. 5:652-654). The earlier type of facets are
irregular and probably are used on wirewound beads.

The machine faceted types are guite regular and usually
occur on cane beads.

The fifth category is Blcwn Bead notated with a cﬁD1+al MR

Clcwn beads account for anproximately 0.0% of the glass beads

‘nalyzed at Mission Santa Clara, since no blown heads have bheen
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A gloss tvbe is Lioated and blcoun into a
llizscid bkced. Thon looking inside the perforation

e
»zzd is hollow ernd at cach end cf the parforaticn

is = tip oFf glass,
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Il SRETA CLERA GLASS BEED TYPROIOGY

The werking tynology is a continually evolving systcm which
will be chancing on a continuum as more data is available.
A great deal of effort has gone into trying to standardize

the hezd remenclature for !ission Santa Clara with the iMission

()

The Meighan type collection, irg

b %

\J
(Y]

rfect as it is, is vsed ‘o
a

)
!

aneral neme of the head

(

(o}

st-r~Aardize the general shape zan
1

tten in the middle of the type card with the color

r

1 %
end cdzgree of opagueness.

=
0
z

znufacture type is the first major characteri

'~I
.
g
’-l
(9]
9]
(
o]
]

sidared. Mission Santa Clara's five basic manufacluvrz types are:
A. Cane - Prefix C
B. Wirewound - Prefix W
C. Faceted - Prefix F
D. Pressed -~ Prefix P
E. Blown - Prefix B

The second major characteristic considered is the color. This
is a difficult variable to standardize. Bennyhoff contznds that
color variability is of insignificant importance if the variants
are found in the same burial lot. Therefore, lMeighan's type
102 red or pink centers should be classed with Meighan's type 99,
red or white centers.

The pinkness probably being a technological error in processing,
according to Bennyhoff should not be separated. This argument
sounds most logical, but it assumes that the Mission Indians
Led no preference. This researcher is very uncomfortable with
that assumption; therefore, the Mission Santa Clara beads have
becen separated according to gross color differences as viewed
in direct sunlight, in the same manner as the liission San Jose
i>2ads were typed.

In cgeneral, if one compares the head data of early Californian
riLxzg, it prcgresses Ifrcm the cerlisst cckalt -biue type <.
co the most recent types. (See Site Compariscn by Percentzze

n

0of Colors -- =



Scguence in ccnaceral is dasicgred to proc.ant

JA_.AV‘ 2 - TR i

11

"he color numbercc

Lu

a possihle temporal secunnce of cuwe lmportance. Just &s the
pead typne preference at a particular site imost prolcbhbly was not
at randcm, hut a reflection of the values of that particular
cuiltuvre group, the selection of the color scgueince is a

hynothesized reflection of the selective value of antigquity:

o
[17]
¢
3
J

2])er nuwaber being of the greatest hypctiiesized sutionity,

The Mission Santa Clara color numeral seguenc

closely correlated with the Ventura and San Jose HMission data to
i 4

attempt to standardize the typology in C=2li

The following temporal numerals have bean zzcioncd to the
}lission Santa Clara bead colors.
1. Cobalt biue 8. Black 15. Purple
2. Copper bhlue 9. Brown 16.
3. Green 10, Amber LY.
4, Opagque white l11. Opaque vellow 18,
S. Clear - transparent 12, Yellcw 195
6. Red 13. Orange 20,
7. Ovnaqgue 14, Gray 21

An example 0f a wirewound white bead, then, would be given
the designation of W4. By examining the type sheet in the
Appendix, one will observe that it is rather casy to distinguish
wh.ich color types and how many are represented for each
manufacture type.

To distinguish the variety of white wirewound bead types,
an alphabetical designation in order of future collection
should be employed. Therefore, the first wirewound white
type was assigned a Mission Santa Clara nomenclature of W4a;
the second, Wéb, etc.

This system is realistic in that it will allow for continual
c»pansion of the Mission Santa Clara type nomznclature as new
tyoes are recorded.

Zn attempt should be made to continue this type of notation

with the nonglass beads. The small sample of nonglass beeds
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makes it difficult to assess the feesibility of continuing
this type of notation.

Additional reczarch is nezded to bLether understand variations

n
oty
G
B
o))
C

in cclor of glas s and its sicnificance io those who .
valued the beads. Turguoise blue was ohtained Ly adding copper
s fo

e s xrar ) s T e e el
rmwla; darker (navy) blue ii7s obtained by

adding cchalt to the glass fornmula; ..éding charceal produced
yellow--brcwn glass; manganese dioxid wnen adésd, »roduced

S 1268:4)., Red wine-
colored hzads were prodi o)
S

d
suggests that after 1 d instead of ¢old to
3

e
produce bright red transparant beads (197
In addition to recording color, characteristic of light
transmission is recorded. It has been noted if a bead is
opagque (3), translucent (2) (the perforation can be seen frcm

the side of the bead), or transparent (1) crystal. (¥eighan, 1953).

Beeause of the problems of oxidation and mineral deposits on
some bead samples, all opaque and color tests were done on
wet beads held up to direct sun light. This provided a gross
standard of color and light transmission which may approximate
that of the bead when first manufactured. This method may
also approximate the method of inspection used by the carly
traders and recipients of the glass beads. However, a sophis-
ticated scientific method of classification should be developed

based on the physical make-up of each bead type.



MISSION SANTA CLARA SUHELL =40 TYPES

One shell bead has been collected. The shell bezd has Leen
typed by four attributes which include species, shape of the
shell bead, manufacture technology, and bead dimensions.

Clam Discs - Cld
One specimen; both sides of the shell are ground flat, and
the periphery is ground circular. There is a central

perforation in the bead; the species 1s probably Tresus.

16.0/8.0/5.0 - white
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classified tvpes to date at i
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Seze ZPWEUDIX for the :major type tables.
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PERLIMINARY COLPARAYIVE CALLFORNIAN CLAGS #1.:D 717 LiSIS

Althcugh glass heads occur through the wo:rld, svstematic
studies arec rare (van der Sleen: 1973; Xidd cd Xidd: 1970).
Previously, only a few have been done on glass Lnzds fcund
in California. Recent salvage projects have 2lleowad some
w farstanding of t s of beads us2d during the ""ission Period

. 3
IS

(1780-1834). These studias may be comparable to the

l=2e

gsimn
Santa Clara beads.

Medea Creek (LAn-243), (Thousand Oaks), an inland Chumash
site was occupied after 1500 A.D. &and ahkandoned abcut 1735 A.D.
The site contains scme of the first glass beads used by the
Indians. Of the beads dated between 1770 and 1780, 100% of
them were cobalt and cooper hlue. (L. King: 1969)

The historic site of Humaliwu (L2n-264) near the coastal
town of Malibu was occupied from 1785 to 1816 (based on
Mission baptismal data). Its sample of over 15,600 glass and

i’ 27,000 shell beads can be seriated into early, middle, late
bead complexes based on bead diameters of Olivella Saucers.
Of the glass beads dated 1782 to 1816, 95% were cobalt, 'copper
blue, and green; 4% were white, clear and red; and less than
10% were amber and others. (C. King and R. Gibson:1973).

It is interesting to note that while over 9,000 rnoney bLeads
(lipped and cups) occurred at Medea Creek (1500-1785 A.D.),
none of those money types occurred at Humaliwu (1785-1316 A.D.)
It may be assumed that the economic base changed from aboriginal
shell to Venetian glass. The source of money apparently changed
from the Channel Islands to the Spanish Missions. This change
may have resulted in many other changes in Chumash cultural
systems.

The historic site of Missicn San Buenaventura (Ven--87) w2s
an early occupied site (3,000+ B.C.), but was occupied by

the Mission from 1782 until 1840, avproximately a cc:parable




“-te wiih that of Iicsion Santa Clara of 1777--1536, lincty =
Jereont of the beads excaraited at Voentura siére shell beads. N
the glass beads, 65% were blue-green, 13.5% white, clear, an:

cad 21 were yellew, anmber and others. The last group is hy c-

5. (R. Gibson:1975).

31
The hicstorié site of Pkission San Jose (2La-1) was occcupie?
79

()

7-1836, also approximately comparahl
a

Nine percent of the beads thus far excavated at Mission £-a
Jose were shell beads. Of the glass beads, arproximately 7%
were blue-greens, 90% white, clear and reds, and 3% were vell:-:

emer and others (Eone:1975).

At Mission Santa Clara SCI-30 and present church site (17:1-
1836) only one clam shell disc bead has been collected. Of
the glass beads, approximately 29% were blue-grecns, 71% whi=z,

clear and reds, and 0.5% yellow amber and others.,

V)
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FOTURE o ALYTICAL AND TY20TOCY »=o3LEilS L0 wIeeTey SANTA (CLipa
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A consicezrcable ancunt of buildiag is ¢oing on or is scheduleq

=
in the nezar fature on the Santa Clara camns. The Siudent
Activities Center and Cowell Stuc(nt Heelth Center will socen
be completed. The Seifert Gymnasivm «nd Donchoe Infirma

ry
#re scheduled for demonlition in e ncar Tviure. The Santa:
Clara County chn“uni gical Society has

S
in conducting surface surveys curing construct
ol

tion between the Czmpus TFacility Project cuperintendent,
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the Ge Saisset Art Galler c
certainly benefit the iiission Santa Clara ktead type collection.

The Mission Santa Clara bead typology collection can be
used to classify new additions to the bzad collection. If
the provenience is maintained with the newly collected beads,
the bead types and Bennvhoff's bead complex classification
may be used to test the dating and perhaps svpecific locaticas
of the five Mission Santa Clara Church sites.

This certainly is a fertile arca for future investigation.

An area of concern which needs to be standardized is the
classification of faceted beads. Prior to 1850, apparcntly
faceted beads were hand filed producing irregular facets.

After 1850, the faceted beads were milled and ground, producing
uniform facets. This could easily lend itself to early versus
late faceted beads as used by CGibson in the Ventura analysis.
However, Bennyhoff suggests that sccondary faceting of the edges
may be used as a third criteria for classifying faceted bcads.
'In this analysis, since there were so few faceted heads, the
faceted beads were treated as a single group. However, further

znalysis and additional conmunication on the subject hopeinilly

will lead to a classification standardization and a reclassifica
tinn of liission Santa Clera's ifzcz=24d H=ezdls.
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Based on the limnited sample thus
vas a troncndons selective pressvre owav from shell L 2:3ds and
toward glass trade beads, espeeizlly for the exgensive vhite,
white on white, &nd wvarious recs.

Bzred on the perapnbanga:

+he older bhlue towerds the whicos &nd o

type came fwon the third church site of
came from the prasant church site of 1825, and which, if any,
came from the f{ourth church site of 131
and the Administration Building.
Using Bennyhoff's glass bead complexes for the miwok may

provide insights to the beads from ecach Santa Clara Church site

which hopefully would be tested by future excavations at each
site.
The Third Mission Church site (1784-131¢) crosses Rennyhoff's

Early Mission period of 1769-1816. The characteristic
discription of this time period beads is that they ave unifouxmly
small, varied in color and shape. Analyzing the Huraliwa and
Ventura data would indicate that well over 50% of the Third
Mission Santa Clara site should have been the blue-greens.

The fourth Mission Church site (1819-1825) includes
Bennyhoff's Late Mission period (1816-1839) acain with the glass
beads being uniformly cmall, simple and rounded shape. The
typical types of this period according to Bennyhoff's description,
would be the whites, greens, blues, reds or greens, and blacks.
No blacks have been collected to this date.

The fifth or present Mission Church site (1825 to present)
Micsion pericd (1816-1839) and includes the

Sutter Period (1839--1345). The general boad type of the

crosses the Late

) . . (I 28
R T =

Sutter period inclucdes medium sice »eaés with & n3sls on £

Ul

whites and red on light grcens.,
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varicty of beads including la

The nurbher =nd varied

c} race beads thus far recnided
indic..i2s the wrasence =2nd wvalue of +the heads at Mission

Santa Clara.

This preliminary c
answered ncne. The very small bead semple size and ithe nca-
existance of scientific excavatiocons
an indepth analysis and skewed the data.

However, an important outcome has been a working gless
bead typology which is cross-—-referenced to other Californian
bead sites. Historic archaeology has tazken a back seat in
California for a considerable period, but pexrhaps with the
problems posed in this paper, more anthropologists will give .
it a second look and find that it is not only interesiing, but
very challenging.

The typology can be used as a springboard to look uiich
further into the complex cultural structural and systemns of
the local Indians.

I would very much appreciate receiving all data, coisacats,
and/or suggestions related to the Mission Santa Clara bead
complex or the Mission Santa Clara bead typology.

Kenneth J. Bone
1011 Mt. Carmel Drive
San Jose, California 95120

(408) 268-5943
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